
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 


(Kansas City Docket) 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, } 

} 


Plaintiff, } 

} 


v. 	 } No. 08-20110-01-CM 
} 

MICHAEL J. DEAN, } 
} 

Defendant. } 

PLEA AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO FED. R. CRIM. P. 11(c)(1)(C) 

The United States ofAmerica, by Marietta Parker, Acting U.S. Attorney, and Michael 

J. Dean, the defendant, personally and by and through his attorney, Thomas R. Telthorst, 

hereby enter into the following plea agreement pursuant to Rule 11 (c)(1)(C) of the Federal 

Rules of Criminal Procedure: 

1. Defendant's Guilty Plea. If the Court permits, the defendant agrees to 

plead guilty to Count s One and Two of the Indictment, which charges in Count One a 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, §§ 1014 and 2, that is, false statement in a loan 

application, and in Count Two, a violation of Title 18, United States Code, §1957, money 

laundering. By entering into this plea agreement, the defendant admits to knowingly 

committing these offenses, and to being guilty of them. The defendant understands that 

the maximum sentence which may be imposed as to Count One is not more than 30 years 

of imprisonment, a $1,000,000 fine, five (5) years of supervised release, and a $100 

mandatory special assessment. The defendant further understands that the maximum 

sentence which may be imposed as to Count Two of the Indictment is not more than ten 
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(10) years of imprisonment, a $250,000 fine or a fine of not more than twice the amount 

of the criminally derived property involved in the transaction, three (3) years of supervised 

release, and a $100 mandatory special assessment The United States agrees to move 

to dismiss the remaining counts of the at the time of sentencing. 

2. Factual Basis for the Guilty Plea. The parties agree the facts constituting 

the offense to which the defendant is pleading guilty are as follows: 

Count One 

On or about January 7, 2008, in Overland Park in the District of 
Kansas, the defendant knowingly made material false statements and 
omissions for the purpose of influencing the action of Peoples Bank,in 
connection with a loan for the purchase of property located at 11005 
Northridge, Kansas City, Kansas. In a Uniform Residential Loan Application 
submitted to Peoples Bank on that date, the defendant omitted material 
information relating to his liabilities and outstanding judgments against him 
which he knew of but did not disclose. The outstanding judgments that the 
defendant failed to disclose in the loan application consisted of a Judgment 
in a Criminal Case entered on February 9, 2004, in the United States District 
Court for the District of Kansas in the case entitled United States v. Michael 
J. Dean, Case No. 03CR20002 ordering the defendant to pay restitution in 
the total amount of $113,124.47, and a Judgment entered on February 24, 
2004, in the District Court of Wyandotte County, Kansas, in Case No. 02 C 
5125 ordering the defendant to pay another person $15,030.91. Had 
Peoples Bank known of these material omissions, it would not have agreed 
to transfer the loan proceeds to Capital City Bank to fund the purchase of the 
residence located on Northridge. 

The parties stipulate and agree that during the month of January, 
2008, the deposits of Peoples Bank were insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation. 

COUNT TWO 

On or about January 7, 2008, in Overland Park in the District of 
Kansas, the defendant knowingly engaged in a monetary transaction through 
a financial institution, People's Bank, in criminally derived property of a value 
greater than $10,000, that is the transfer of a monetary instrument, check 
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No. 72229 drawn on the account of Peoples Bank in the amount of 
$234,231.39 payable to Capital City Bank (to payoff loan # 116550
104/Janrick, Inc.), representing the proceeds of a loan that he had 
fraudulently obtained from the commission of a specified unlawful activity, 
that is: false statement in a loan application in violation of Title 18, United 
States Code, Section 1014 as alleged in Count One. 

The parties stipulate and agree that the monetary transaction 
described above affected interstate commerce. 

J\ l{e'\.~~ 
3. Proposed (c)(1)(C) Sentence. The parties propose, as an appropriate 

disposition of the case, a sentence of twelve (12) months in prison on each count to be 

served concurrently, followed by five (5) years of supervised release; no fine; and the 

mandatory special assessment of $200 to be paid during the defendant's incarceration. 

The parties seek this binding plea agreement as an appropriate disposition of the case 

because it brings certainty to the sentencing process and assures that the defendant and 

the government will benefit from the bargain they have struck if the Court permits itself to 

be bound by the proposed sentence; the interests of justice are served by the sentence, 

thereby assuring that the sentence is consistent with the sentencing factors of 18 U.S.C. 

§ 3553(a); and if the Court does not agree with the sentence, the parties may be restored 

to the positions they maintained prior to reaching this plea agreement. This agreement 

centers on the defendant's agreement to enter his guilty plea as soon as the Court's 

schedule permits, thereby preserving valuable Court, prosecution, public defender, 

probation office, U.S. Marshals Service and other law enforcement resources. 

4. Application of the SentenCing Guidelines. The parties are of the belief that 

the proposed sentence does not offend the now advisory sentencing guidelines, but 
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because this proposed sentence is sought pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c)(1)(C), the 

parties are not requesting imposition of an advisory guideline sentence. 

5. Government's Additional Agreement. In return for the defendant's plea of 

guilty as set forth herein, the United States Attorney for the District of Kansas also agrees 

to not file any additional charges against the defendant arising out of the facts forming the 

basis for the Indictment. 

6. Whether to Accept the Proposed Plea Agreement and Sentence is Up to the 

Court. The Court has no obligation to accept the proposed plea agreement and sentence. 

It is solely within the Court's discretion whether to accept the proposed binding plea 

agreement as an appropriate disposition of the case. 

7. Withdrawal of Plea Permitted Only if the Court Does Not Accept the Plea 

Agreement and Proposed Sentence. On the other hand, if the Court agrees to be bound 

by proposed plea agreement and accepts the defendant's plea of guilty, the defendant will 

not be permitted to withdraw it. Only if the Court rejects the proposed plea agreement will 

the defendant be permitted to withdraw his guilty plea. 

8. Payment of Special Assessment. The defendant understands that a 

mandatory special assessment of $200 will be entered against the defendant at the time 

of sentencing. The parties acknowledge the defendant is without adequate resources to 

pay the special assessment at the time of sentencing and agree to recommend that the 

Court order payment to occur during the defendant's period of incarceration. 

9. Waiver of Appeal and Collateral Attack. If the Court agrees to the proposed 

plea agreement, the defendant knowingly and voluntarily waives any right to appeal or 

collaterally attack any matter in connection with this prosecution, conviction and sentence. 
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The defendant is aware that Title 18, U.S.C. § 3742 affords a defendant the right to appeal 

the conviction and sentence imposed. By entering into this agreement, the defendant 

knowingly waives any right to appeal if the Court imposes the sentence requested by the 

parties. The defendant also waives any right to challenge a sentence or otherwise attempt 

to modify or change his sentence or manner in which it was determined in any collateral 

attack, including, but not limited to, a motion brought under Title 28, U.S.C. § 2255 [except 

as limited by United States v. Cockerham, 237 F.3d 1179, 1187 (10th Cir. 2001)], a motion 

brought under Title 18, U.S.C. § 3582(c)(2), and a motion brought under Fed. Rule of Civ. 

Pro. 60(b). However, if the United States exercises its right to appeal the sentence 

imposed as authorized by Title 18, U.S.C. § 3742(c), the defendant is released from this 

waiver and may appeal the sentence received as authorized by Title 18, U.S.C. § 3742(c). 

10. Waiver of FOIA Request. The defendant waives all rights, whether asserted 

directly or by a representative, to request or receive from any department or agency of the 

United States any records pertaining to the investigation or prosecution of this case 

including, without limitation, any records that may be sought under the Freedom of 

Information Act, Title 5, U.S.C. § 552, or the Privacy Act of 1974, Title 5, U.S.C. § 552a. 

11. Full Disclosure by United States. The defendant understands the 

United States will provide to the court and the United States Probation Office all 

information it deems relevant to determining the appropriate sentence in this case. This 

may include information concerning the background, character, and conduct of the 

defendant including the entirety of the defendant's criminal activities. The defendant 

understands these disclosures are not limited to the count to which the defendant has pled 

guilty. The United States may respond to comments made or positions taken by the 
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defendant or defendant's counsel and to correct any misstatements or inaccuracies. The 

United States further reserves its right to make any recommendations it deems appropriate 

regarding the disposition of this case, subject only to any limitations set forth in this plea 

agreement. The defendant also has the right to provide information concerning the offense 

and to make recommendations to the court and the United States Probation Office. 

12. Parties to the Agreement. The defendant understands this plea agreement 

binds only the defendant and the United States Attorney for the District of Kansas, and that 

it does not bind any other federal, state, or local prosecution authority. 

13. No Other Agreements. The defendant has had sufficient time to discuss 

this case, the evidence, and this agreement with the defendant's attorney and defendant 

is fully satisfied with the advice and representation provided by defendant's counsel. 

Further, the defendant acknowledges that he has had the plea agreement read to him, 

understands it and agrees it is true and accurate and not the result of any threats, duress 

or coercion. The defendant further understands that this plea agreement supersedes any 

and all other agreements or negotiations between the parties, and that this agreement 

embodies each and every term of the agreement between the parties. The defendant 
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-----------------

acknowledges that the defendant is entering into this agreement and is pleading guilty 

because the defendant is guilty and is doing so freely and voluntarily. 

5l?~ Date!fokL24~1
~parker
Acting U.S. Attorney 

500 State Avenue; Ste 360 

Kansas City, Kansas 66101 

KS Dist. C No. 77807 
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Thomas R. T elthorst 

816 Ann Avenue 

Kansas City, Kansas 66101 

Attorney for Michael J, Dean 
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